
1 
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 
The Minutes of the Meeting of the 

State Drug Treatment Court Advisory Committee  

  

October 20, 2016 

Richmond, Virginia 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  

SUPREME COURT OF VIRGINIA 

Office of the Executive Secretary 

Richmond, Virginia 

 

 



2 
 

State Drug Treatment Court Advisory Committee  

The Drug Treatment Court Advisory Committee (DTCAC) met at 10:00 am on Thursday, 

October 20, 2016 in the 6th floor Courts Conference Center Room at the Supreme Court of Virginia. 

Judge Jerrauld Jones, Vice-Chair, presided.  

 The following members were present: 

• Hon. Jerrauld C. Jones, Judge, Norfolk Circuit Court 

• Karl R. Hade, Executive Secretary, Supreme Court of Virginia 

• Hon. Charles Sharp, Judge, Stafford Circuit Court 

• Hon. Jack “Chip” Hurley, Judge, Tazewell Circuit Court, Tazewell Drug Court 

• Hon. Frederick Rockwell, Judge, Chesterfield County Circuit Court, Chesterfield/ 

Colonial Heights Drug Court 

• Hon. Louise DiMatteo, Judge, Arlington County Circuit Court, Arlington Drug Court 

• Hon. Barry Logsdon, Judge, Newport News Juvenile & Domestic Relations Court, 

Newport News Juvenile Drug Court 

• Steve Thompson, Major, Prince William County Police, Association of Chiefs of 

Police 

• Maria Jankowski, Deputy Director, Virginia Indigent Defense Commission (IDC) 

• Hon. Jack Weisenburger, Sheriff, Bristol; Virginia Sheriff’s Association 

• Julie Truitt, Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services (DBHDS) 

• Charlene Motley, Commission on Virginia Alcohol Safety Action Program (VASAP) 

• Natale Ward, Virginia Association of Community Services Board (VACSB) 

• Cheryl Robinette, Drug Court Coordinator, Tazewell & Buchanan Counties 

• Anna Burton, HIDTA Coordinator, Virginia Department of Corrections 

• Tricia Shaw, Past President, Virginia Drug Court Association (VDCA) 

• Hon. LLezelle Dugger, Circuit Court Clerk, Charolottesville, Circuit Court Clerk’s 

Association 

The following guests were present: 

• Hon. Randall Johnson, Judge, Henrico Juvenile & Domestic Relations Court 

• Hon. John Hart, Jr., Judge, Harrisonburg/Rockingham General District Court  

• Hon. William Eldridge, IV, Judge, Harrisonburg/Rockingham General District Court 



3 
 

• Hon. Edwin Burnette, Judge, Lynchburg Circuit Court 

• Hon Gordon Wilkins, Judge, Retired,  Justice Outreach Liaison 

• Michael Walsh, Henrico County 

• Matthew Bond, Henrico County 

• Pam Simmons, Executive Director, Valley Alcohol Safety Action Program, 

Harrisonburg 

• Jim Taylor, Dept. County Administrator, Hanover County 

• Maranda Tyler,  Director, Hanover Community Corrections 

• Joelle Inge-Messerschmidt, Hanover County CSB, 

• Lisa Beitz, Hanover County CSB, 

The following staff members were present: 

• Anna Powers, State Drug Court Coordinator, Supreme Court of Virginia 

• Brittney Journigan, Drug Court Data Analyst, Supreme Court of Virginia 

• Regina Glaser, Drug Court Analyst, Supreme Court of Virginia 

WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS 

Judge Jerrauld Jones called the meeting to order and welcomed all in attendance and asked 

the members to introduce themselves.   

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 The next order of business was approval of the April 28, 2016 meeting minutes. Judge Jones 

asked for any amendments to the meeting minutes. A motion was made to approve the minutes as 

submitted.  The minutes were unanimously approved.   

PROGRAM PROGRESS 

 Ms. Anna Powers provided a statewide update on the progress of the Virginia Drug 

Treatment Courts.  She shared the following localities received Drug Court Grant awards as follows:  

• BJA Adult Drug Court Discretionary Grant, Implementation 
Northwest Regional Drug Court 
Halifax County Adult Drug Court 

• BJA Adult Drug Court Discretionary Grant, Enhancement 
Norfolk Adult Drug Court, specifically to add Vivitrol  

 
SAMHSA grant applications will be announced soon. 

 



4 
 

Our current statewide BJA Grant received the no cost extension until September 2016.  The only 

remaining item continued to be funded is the prescription drug study report. 

The National Drug Court Institute (NDCI) announced the application for the three day 2017 

Adult Planning Drug Courts Initiative (ADCPI) training and the Veterans Court Planning Training 

are due October 31, 2016. Programs that complete this training received priority in federal grant 

awards.    

Virginia Drug Courts were invited to the Veterans Summit at Altria on November 17, 2016.  

Virginia Drug Courts were also invited to present at training for new clerks.  Ms. Journigan will 

provide the training while Ms. Powers attends the summit.   

Judge Jones asked if the committee had any questions for Ms. Powers.  He added that he 

would like to thank Anna for all the hard work she put on for the annual conference this past year. 

We had first class presenters. The location was very desirable. We were so grateful so many 

participated. We even had to turn some away that registered late. The training room was full. We 

hope to continue to grow.  Next Ms. Powers shared our progress with planning closing out this 

event.  We are still finalizing our 2016 report. The FY2016 award included funds to implement the 

DUI-RANT for the DUI Drug Courts. That goal was not met. She added that our FY2017 grant 

application was awarded.   

 We received many requests from attendees to return to The Kingsmill in 2017 and The 

Kingsmill welcomes us. However the dates they provided conflict with the district judges 

conference. The other available dates at the state rate are the week of Labor Day.   The 2017 

Training theme will be New Challenges & New Solutions.  Judge Jones asked if there were any 

questions about program progress information.  Hearing no response he added, many have attended 

the conference in the past, attendance increases and content gets better and better.  

VDCA UPDATES 

 Judge Jones recognized Tricia Shaw representing VDCA in the room.  Tricia stated they 

planned a winter symposium which is now being planned in the spring, around April. Greg Hopkins 

is the symposium chair. He has been notified of bills that have been filed that are left over from last 

year. Ms. Shaw encouraged everyone to provide more education about drug courts. She stated that 

she would like all drug courts to join VDCA as members and be active. She stated she realizes it is 

difficult to travel, so conference call lines have been initiated. Judge Jones also encouraged everyone 

to become a member, as well as be an active member.  



5 
 

Judge Jones reminded the group that he is vice chair of this committee and chairs the 

executive committee.  

COMMITTEE UPDATES 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Judge Jones shared the Executive Committee continues to meet monthly by conference call. 

He stated the committee meets via phone the last Friday of the month at 8:30 to ensure that we 

monitor progress, continue the flow of information across the community, especially legislative 

happenings and funding.  Sometimes we have to respond quickly. Next he stated,  he would like to 

talk about problem-solving dockets. In recent years, there has been a lot of interest in therapeutic 

dockets. The national state court administrators have called them problem-solving dockets. We have 

had the opportunity to focus on many different needs; mental health, veterans, so much so that the 

Chief Justice requested we create a special committee and report back on this question. Because 

things have rapidly evolved and efforts to establish a statute, to mirror the Drug Treatment Court 

Act, was met with resistance and did not pass another path was sought. There were questions about 

what we are doing.  Is this the right way to go? There was a recent meeting of the Judicial Council 

and there was an exchange of legislatures and Chief Justices about problem-solving dockets. An 

article about that exchange is included in your packet. The Chief Justice created the Specialty 

Dockets Committee by Rule of Court.  To create consistency and integrity the Rule of Court 

prescribes the authorization process, oversight structure and operating standards for how specialty 

dockets will operate.  We need to do this right, with evidence based practices. The Chief Justice 

called a meeting in mid-August with Veterans, Behavioral Health and Public Safety cabinet 

secretaries, many judges, and others to announce the rule of court and set the tone for it.  Two 

advisory committees were established, to parallel the Drug Treatment Court Advisory Committee, 

one for veterans dockets, and the other for behavioral health dockets. The specialty dockets will 

follow the drug treatment court model application and oversight process. Mr. Hade stated the court 

met yesterday to review comments and finalize the rule. The goal is to have something finalized 

prior to the General Assembly session start and hopefully prior to Dec. 1, 2016. He added, there 

have been some negative, but also many positive comments. Some of the leadership in the General 

Assembly reached out and said they are not opposed, but want to see the structure. It is anticipated 

the Rule of Court will help cultivate these dockets. 

 



6 
 

EVALUATION COMMITTEE 

Judge Jones invited Judge Sharp to discuss the evaluation committee activities.  Judge Sharp 

reviewed how the evaluation committee operates. He stated his goal is to show how effective drug 

courts are and how much money they save. He added that we are currently finishing up the 

prescription drug study that was funded through the statewide BJA grant. The evaluators were 

delayed due to waiting on data from the Virginia State Police.  

A brief review of current findings indicates the differences are not that great for prescription drug 

users compared to other users. Completion rates tend to be the same for both groups. Termination 

rates were different. The complete report will be available to everyone.  The Drug Treatment Court 

Annual report is due December 1, 2016.  This year’s report will show a higher percentage of high 

risk participants. It may show a decrease in graduation and an increase in termination. However, 

there is a demonstrated increase in cost savings of over $24,000,000 million. Judge Sharp stated the 

evaluation committee will meet via phone Nov. 3, 2016 at 830 a.m. Judge Jones emphasized the 

importance of data. Ms. Powers added for those present requesting permission to start new programs 

that we have a drug court database and our drug court standards mandate that all drug courts enter 

data into the drug court database. This provides the information we use in our annual report. 

OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 

Next Judge Jones moved to operations committee. Judge Hurley stated that it would be great 

to have new members on the operations committee. Please contact Ms. Powers if you are interested 

in joining this committee.  Judge Hurley shared that the operations committee reviewed five 

applications, and the follow up responses. The committee is recommending each of these 

applications for approval. Judge Hurley added the committee has also been working to revise the 

adult drug court standards to correlate with the national best practice standards. Due to the number 

of applications reviewed the standards modifications will be presented at the next meeting.  

The first application to be reviewed was Harrisonburg/Rockingham DUI Drug Court Docket. Judge 

Hurley commented that it was an excellent application. He added that all questions have been 

addressed. Judge Hurley called on Judge Hart, Judge Eldridge and Pam Simmons to introduce 

themselves and describe their program. Judge Hart began with that they went as a team to the DUI 

Drug Court training in Georgia. They used Waynesboro DUI Drug Court and Judge Saunders as a 

model. He reviewed application with Pam Simmons, ASAP Director.  The program will be post-

conviction with an ASAP show cause hearing. He said they need to see more treatment provided. 



7 
 

They want to be progressive. Judge Hurley asked when they plan to start. Judge Eldridge stated that 

they would like to have more meetings with stakeholders and were hoping to begin around the first 

of the year. Judge Jones asked if the Commonwealth’s Attorney (CA) was on board. Both judges 

answered affirmative stating once the CA learned it was post-conviction they were supportive. Judge 

Jones asked how many they expect to serve. Ms. Simmons replied that they would like to serve 

between 10 and 20 during the first year. Judge Sharp asked if they have had any communication with 

legislators. Judge Hart stated yes they have and the legislators are supportive only as long as it is 

post-conviction model. Ms. Jankowski asked about what were some of the committees concerns. 

Judge Hurley stated the committee provided primarily language change suggestions, such as use 

Ecstasy instead of the slang Molly to identify drugs, to include therapeutic adjustments with 

sanctions and incentives.  They questioned how quickly the participants would get into treatment. 

Some things just needed clarified, such as a fee payment or other plan for indigent participants, using 

the 4 incentives to1 sanction ratio, where will they go for crisis intervention. Judge Eldridge added 

that they have a staff who completed the Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) training. Judge DiMatteo 

asked who was providing the treatment. Ms. Simmons replied that they had a variety of treatment 

providers, including the community services board. Ms. Simmons stated the DUI drug court docket 

is mandatory, not voluntary. Judge Hurley stated there was a recommendation to approve, and 

seconded. The court docket was approved. Ms. Jankowski stated she had a concern with the court 

not being voluntary and felt as if it goes against the fundamentals of drug court. Judge Hurley replied 

there may be an advantage because it gave judges an option that they may not have had and the 

existing DUI Drug Court Dockets are also mandatory. Judge Jones welcomed the new docket.  

Judge Hurley moved to Henrico Juvenile Drug Court. He opened the floor to Judge Johnson 

and invited him to share. Judge Johnson introduced himself & those with him, Michael Walsh, and 

Matthew Bond. He stated that he realized Henrico was the only court in the Richmond area without a 

juvenile drug court. He visited to Richmond Juvenile Drug Court and was impressed. When he 

visited the Hanover Juvenile Drug Court he was able to preside over the docket. He stated that he 

talked to Ms. Shaw, Henrico County Adult Drug Court Coordinator, about this for years and she 

advised him to attend the DUI Drug Court Training conference. He stated when he asked about why 

Henrico didn’t have a juvenile drug court he was told they spend too much on juveniles already. He 

added he wants to fill a gap in juvenile services. Additionally they plan to begin without any 

funding. Judge Wilkins asked if this will include juveniles addicted to alcohol. Judge Johnson 



8 
 

responded that there is nothing to exclude that. Judge Johnson added, if the juvenile will get 

something from the program, they will not be prevented from participating. Ms. Shaw requested to 

abstain from voting because she was part of planning this program. Judge Hurley stated there was a 

recommendation to approve and seconded. Motion was approved. Judge Jones welcomed the new 

court.  

Judge Hurley allowed Judge Burnett to introduce himself and the Lynchburg Adult Drug 

Court application. Judge Burnett stated that they have not come before the committee before because 

his predecessor did not believe in drug courts. He stated that they hope to serve 15 people in a pilot 

program. Probation and parole, and treatment providers have all agreed to provide in-kind services. 

Their plan is to operate the program on this basis for about two years and then expand.  The local 

CSB, Horizon Health, is on board, as well as other treatment providers. Judge Burnett added that he 

will preside for the drug court docket. He stated that they have had community support and interest 

as well to provide incentives for participants. Judge Hurley asked if it was a big shift for the CA to 

support the drug court. Judge Burnett replied that the CA is on board, but the prior CA was not. Ms. 

Powers asked if they had a start date. Judge Burnett replied March 1, 2017. Judge DiMatteo asked if 

they had a coordinator and if they have a process for instant sanctions. Judge Burnett responded that 

the clerk will be the coordinator initially. He added that they have a process for immediate sanctions 

and also have an immediate sanctions probation docket. Judge Hurley moved to approve the 

application and it was seconded. The court was approved. Judge Jones welcomed Lynchburg as a 

new drug court.  

Judge Hurley moved to Hanover next. Mr. Jim Taylor introduced himself as well as Ms. 

Miranda Tyler who will serve as the coordinator, and Joelle and Lisa with the CSB. He thanked Ms. 

Powers and Ms. Journigan for their help with the application process. He added that Judge Harris has 

prior experience with the DUI drug court in Fredericksburg. He also stated that Hanover has a 

juvenile drug court so they have experience with that as well. They have a new court house opening 

in the beginning of the year. They would like to start with 6 participants about that time. Ms. Shaw 

asked about the target population. Ms. Tyler stated they are targeting probation violators (PV). Judge 

Jones asked if the CA was committed. Mr. Taylor replied that he had questions in the beginning but 

he seems on board with the way that it is currently designed. Ms. Dugger asked if they aim to only 

do PV or will they do other than PV later? Ms. Tyler responded that they have so many PVs now 

that is their main goal. Ms. Jankowski asked about a defense attorney. They stated that they have 



9 
 

one. Judge DiMatteo stated that Arlington started out with a PV target but had to change due to 

participants not wanting to do the work or the consequences not being enough. Mr. Taylor stated that 

they may have to change the program later on, but right now, they are identifying participants. Judge 

Hurley asked where the $86,000 state funds will come from as noted in the news article. Mr. Taylor 

replied that comes from state probation for drug testing and a new clinician position. He added that 

they were also interviewed by Channel 8. Judge Jones asked if feedback from the news has been 

positive or negative. Mr. Taylor said it’s all been positive. Ms. Powers included that the newspaper 

article enticed many phone calls asking about how Hanover qualified for state drug court funds. 

Judge Hurley stated that the operations committee motioned to approve the application it was 

seconded. The court was approved. Judge Jones welcomed the court.  

Judge Hurley stated the next application to discuss was Montgomery County. Ms. Powers, in 

the absence of Montgomery County staff presented the application. Some of the review committee 

comments included:  suggesting therapeutic adjustments be added to sanctions and incentives and 

request clarification on why two sanctions would be imposed for lying and using.  The committee 

suggested that a sanction and a therapeutic adjustment be used instead. A request for clarity on their 

Drug testing was provided upon request.  They will administer drug tests 2x per week at a minimum, 

which complies with best practice standards.  There was discussion about defense council being 

invited rather than required to attend docket and staffings. They replied to our request for clarity 

about this with they will be required to attend both. The committee suggested some additional 

incentives. Judge DiMatteo asked if there was a publication with suggestions for incentives and 

sanctions. Ms. Powers replied affirmative and agreed to make a link to this information available on 

the drug court webpage. Ms. Powers added that this is also included in the Adult Drug Court 

Planning Initiative training workbook. Judge Hurley moved to approve the court and it was 

seconded. The court was approved. Judge Jones welcomed the new court. 

Judge Jones stated there was recently a session on problem solving dockets at the district 

court judges mandatory training. He stated that it was well received and it seemed as if judges 

thought it was worth the time and effort. Judge Hurley stated the revised standards will be discussed 

at the April meeting.  

 

 

 



10 
 

NEXT MEETING 

Judge Jones reminded members the next committee meetings for 2017 are scheduled for 

April 27, October 19. Ms. Powers added that there is an article about a graduation from Pulaski in 

everyone packets.  She encouraged members to review when they have the chance.  Judge Jones 

stated that we try to monitor the media for drug court information. If you see information, send it to 

Ms. Powers. Judge Rockwell added that he noticed a lot of competition potentially for drug court 

funds as behavioral health and veterans dockets grow. He stated that a lot of people do not want to 

do the work that drug court had to do to get where we are today. Judge Jones thanked everyone for 

coming. The meeting was adjourned.  

  

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

__________________________ 
Hon. Jerrauld Jones, Judge 

 

 

 


	Richmond, Virginia

